
Agenda for a meeting of the Bradford East Area 
Committee to be held on Wednesday, 10 November 2021 
at 6.00 pm in the Banqueting Hall - City Hall, Bradford
Members of the Committee – Councillors

LABOUR LIBERAL DEMOCRAT AND 
INDEPENDENT GROUP

Choudhry
H Khan
Iqbal
Mir
Cunningham

R Sunderland
J Sunderland
Knox
R Ahmed

Alternates:
LABOUR LIBERAL DEMOCRAT AND 

INDEPENDENT GROUP
Salam
Jamil
Humphreys
Shafiq
I Khan

Griffiths
Reid
Stubbs

Notes:

 Please note that under the current circumstances only Members and Alternates on the 
Committee will receive paper copies of the agenda, however the agenda and reports can be 
viewed on the Councils agenda and minutes website five clear working days in advance of the 
meeting.

 Given the restrictions on room capacity, any Councillors and members of the public who wish 
to make a contribution at the meeting are asked to email farzana.mughal@bradford.gov.uk by 
mid-day on Monday 8 November 2021 and request to do so. You will then be advised on how 
you can participate in the meeting.  ACCESS TO THE MEETING CANNOT BE 
GUARANTEED IF THOSE WISHING TO ATTEND DO NOT REGISTER GIVEN THE 
COUNCIL MUST COMPLY WITH THE COVID REGULATIONS AND GUIDANCE.

 On the day of the meeting you are encouraged to wear a suitable face covering (unless you are 
medically exempt) and adhere to social distancing.  Staff will be at hand to advise accordingly.  

Decisions on items marked * are not Executive functions and may not be called in under 
Paragraph 8.7 of Part 3E of the Constitution.

From:
Parveen Akhtar
City Solicitor
Agenda Contact: Farzana Mughal
Phone: 07811 504164
E-Mail: farzana.mughal@bradford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

mailto:farzana.mughal@bradford.gov.uk


A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS

1.  ALTERNATE MEMBERS (Standing Order 34)

The City Solicitor will report the names of alternate Members who are 
attending the meeting in place of appointed Members.  

2.  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

(Members Code of Conduct - Part 4A of the Constitution)

To receive disclosures of interests from Members and co-opted members on 
matters to be considered at the meeting. The disclosure must include the 
nature of the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes apparent 
to the Member during the meeting.

Notes:

(1) Members may remain in the meeting and take part fully in discussion 
and voting unless the interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an 
interest which the Member feels would call into question their 
compliance with the wider principles set out in the Code of Conduct.  
Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to the Member concerned or 
their spouse/partner.

(2) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months must not 
vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget calculations, and 
must disclose at the meeting that this restriction applies to them.  A 
failure to comply with these requirements is a criminal offence under 
section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992.  

(3) Members are also welcome to disclose interests which are not 
disclosable pecuniary interests but which they consider should be 
made in the interest of clarity.

(4) Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council Standing 
Order 44.

3.  MINUTES

Recommended –

That the minutes of the meeting held on 14 July 2021 be signed
as a correct record.

(Farzana Mughal – 07811 504164)



4.  INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS

(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)

Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by 
contacting the person shown after each agenda item.  Certain reports and 
background papers may be restricted.  

Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper should 
be made to the relevant Strategic Director or Assistant Director whose name 
is shown on the front page of the report.  

If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.  

Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if you wish 
to appeal.  

(Farzana Mughal – 07811 504164)

5.  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)

To hear questions from electors within the District on any matter this is the 
responsibility of the Committee.  

Questions must be received in writing by the City Solicitor in Room 112, 
City Hall, Bradford, BD1 1HY, by mid-day on Monday 8 November 2021.

(Farzana Mughal – 07811 504164)

B. BUSINESS ITEM

6.  STREET DEDICATION - RENAMING OF HERBERT STREET TO 
'MOHAMMED ALI GARDENS'

The Strategic Director of Place will submit a report (Document “E”) which
considers the proposal to name a new street after Mohammed Ali Jinnah (the 
founder of Pakistan), Mohammed Ali (the boxer) and the applicant’s 
grandparents. 

The applicant has requested the street to be named ‘Mohammed Ali 
Gardens’.

The addressing scheme at Herbert Street, Bradford has been through a 
consultation period of 21 days with Local Councillors.

Recommended –

That the renaming of Herbert Street to ‘Mohammed Ali Gardens’ 
Bradford be approved.

(Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee)

(Adrian Walker – 01274 431237)

1 - 6

THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER



This page is intentionally left blank



Report of the Strategic Director of Place to the meeting 
of Bradford East Area Committee to be held on 
10th November 2021

E

Subject:  Rename Street

To rename ‘Herbert Street’.

Application Number - 21/00340/S4S

Summary statement:

This report considers the proposal to rename Herbert Street.

The applicant has requested the new street name ‘Mohammed Ali Gardens’

The addressing scheme for the site has been through a consultation period of 21 days 
with Local Councillors Councillor Talat Sajawal, Councillor Taj Salam and Councillor 
Fareeda Mir.

Councillor Taj Salam – “I think it would be good I would support the application. It will be 
good for community relations and will not cause too much inconvenience as it does not 
involve too many properties as I understand it.”

Councillor Fareeda Mir – “I am in support of the street name change. I agree it will be good 
for community relations.”

Councillor Talat Sajawal – “I agree with Councillor Salaam and would like to put forward 
my support for the name change too.”

Chris Eaton
Development Manager – Development 
Management

Portfolio:  

Report Contact:  Adrian Walker
Phone: (01274) 431237
E-mail: addressing@bradford.gov.uk

Overview & Scrutiny Area:  Regeneration and 
Environment

Page 1

Agenda Item 6/

mailto:addressing@bradford.gov.uk


1. SUMMARY

 The street name ‘Herbert Street’ to be renamed as ‘Mohammed Ali Gardens’.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 Currently there are no properties addressed on Herbert Street. The owner of 56 
Park Lane, will retain this address for residential use and will be requiring some 
new commercial addresses for some units on ‘Herbert Street’.

2.2 The applicant Balaal Hussain Khan has requested the street name to be changed 
to ‘Mohammed Ali Gardens’.

2.3 The following statement has been provided in support of a decision to approve the 
allocation of ‘Mohammed Ali Gardens’ as a new name for the ‘Herbert Street’.

‘Herbert Street’ to ‘Mohammed Ali Gardens’
Why Mohammed Ali Gardens? This name will represent hope, vision and 
determination. It has been chosen paying homage to my grandparents, Mohammed 
Ali Jinnah; the founder of Pakistan and Mohammed Ali; the boxer. All who have 
been role models to myself and the wider local community. 

Grandparents
My grandparents ‘Mohammed’ Ayub and ‘Ali’ Begum migrated to Bradford in 1963, 
leaving everything behind as every other South Asian during that era. My 
grandfather moved to BD5 and worked in textile mills within the area making the 
area into his home and home for his future generations. My grandmother joined him 
with my father and his siblings in 1975 when my father was 15. The name of the 
street will be a combination of my grandparents first names. The name will pay 
respect to the sacrifices they made and the other migrants from Pakistan made to 
make this area into their home.

Mohammed Ali Jinnah
Mohammed Ali Jinnah, the founder of Pakistan was an idol to myself, a barrister 
who studied law in London and dedicated his life to fighting for justice, equality and 
freedom. Known as ‘Quaid-I Azam’ translated to ‘Great Leader’.
It is due to my aspirations of Mohammed Ali Jinnah that I have pursued a career in 
Law and have decided to give back to my local community by investing into the 
local area of BD5 bringing back buildings into use and employing people from within 
the area providing free access to justice to all.

Mohammed Ali - Professional Boxer
Mohammad Ali- the professional boxer, activist, entertainer, poet, and 
philanthropist. Nicknamed ‘The Greatest’, regarded as one of the most significant 
and celebrated sporting figures of the 20th century, and the best heavyweight boxer 
and greatest athlete of the century. 
By naming the street to Mohammed Ali Gardens it will pay homage to these great 
personalities and represent the hardships of the last century to the future 
generations who will see it as hope. With vision, hard work and determination 
anything is possible. 

Page 2



3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

As the naming of a new street after any individual is a sensitive matter, to be given 
very serious consideration, and is usually only approved in exceptional 
circumstances, it is sensible to provide an alternative suggestion in the event that 
the Committee does not approve this proposal. In this particular case, should the 
Committee not be minded to approve this proposal;

The name ‘Shiraz Street’ will be the allocated street name following consultation 
with the Ward Councillors as part of the current Policy and Protocol.

4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL

N/A.  

5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES

N/A

6. LEGAL APPRAISAL

N/A

7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

7.1 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

N/A

7.2 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS

N/A

7.3 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

N/A 

7.4 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT

N/A

7.5 TRADE UNION

N/A

7.6 WARD IMPLICATIONS

N/A

Page 3



7.7 AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS
(for reports to Area Committees only)

N/A.

7.8 IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING

N/A

7.9 ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESMENT

N/A

8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS

N/A

9. OPTIONS

To rename ‘Herbert Street’ to ‘Mohammed Ali Gardens’. The alternative street 
name suggestion would be ‘Shiraz Street’

10. RECOMMENDATIONS

To approve the renaming of ‘Herbert Street’ to ‘Mohammed Ali Gardens’

Location Plan

12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

N/A

Page 4


	Agenda
	6 STREET DEDICATION - RENAMING OF HERBERT STREET TO 'MOHAMMED ALI GARDENS'

